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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Sambhv Tubes Private Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sambhv Tubes Private Limited ("the

Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3'J.,2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash

Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Ind AS

financial statements"),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required bythe Companies Act,2013 [" the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of [he state of affairs of the Company as at March 3L,2025, the loss and total comprehensive loss,

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We e onducted our audit of the lnd AS linancial statements in ae e ordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10J of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements'section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institr"rte

of Chartered Accountants ol India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the

ICAI's Code of,Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Information Other than the hid AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

'Ihe Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's

Report (but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon), which are

cxpected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form ofassurance or conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions, if
required.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
Lhai includes our-opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is uot a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit, We are also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS linancial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
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evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 [3) (i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner" that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind

AS f,inancial statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

in [i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

intefnal COntfOl lhSt rrro idpnfifrr.l,r"inq nrrr endit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31., 2024 and the

transition date opening balance sheet as at 01 April, 2023 included in these Ind AS financial statements,

are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the

NEW

W,
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Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor who have issued an

unmodified audit report dated September 18, 2024 andAugust 28,2023 respectivelyhave been furnished
to us by the management and which have been relied upon by us for the purpose of issuing the report on

the financial statements as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the
company on transition to Ind AS which has been audited by us. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial

statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect

of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"J, issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
l<nowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS

financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph

2(i)[vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(gJ of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20L4.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of, Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the relevant books of account.

dl ln our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS f,inancial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 olthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 37,2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,

2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1,64 (2) of the Act,

0 With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other rnatters connected therewith, reference

is made to our remarks in the paragraph 2 [b) above on reporting under Section 143 (3J ft) of the

Act and paragraph 2tiJ(vil below on reporting under Rule 1L(g) of the Companies (Audit and

AuditorsJ Rules, 2014.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and

operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Ind As

MEHfinancial statement.
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h) Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Section 1,97(L6) of the Act is not
applicable to the Company for the year ended on March 31,2025.

i) With respect ro the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20'J-4, as amended in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on March 31, 2025, on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note 40 to the Ind AS financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (aJ The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

fwhich are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Illtimate
Beneliciaries"J or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the IJltimate

Beneficiaries.

(bJ The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel no f,unds

fwhich are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"J, with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or othennrise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any

suarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

[c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(eJ, as provided utrder (a) and (bJ

above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year, Accordingly,

reporting under Sub clause (f) of the Rule 1-1 is not applicable to the company'

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial

year cornmencing on April 'J.,2024, has used an accounting software fbr maintaining its

nabled throughout thebooks of account which did not have the audit trail (edit I
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year, and accordingly, the audit trail feature was not operational for all relevant transactions
during the financial year, Since the audit trail was not enabled throughout the year, the
company has not preserved the audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention (refer note 27 of the financial statements).

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N500447

Viiay Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 09267 7

UDI N: 2509267 LBMOFFQB0S 5

Place: New Delhi
Date:July 14,2025
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ANNEXURE 'A'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report to the Members of Sambhv Tubes Private Limited of even date).

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirement to maintain
proper records lor intangible assets is not applicable.

tb) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management according

to the program of periodical verification in phased manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable

having regard to the size of the Companyand the nature of its Property, Plantand Equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the inforrnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

ol the records of the Cornpany, the title deeds ol all imntovable properties, disclosed in the

financialstatements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the

Cornpany as at the balance sheet date.

td) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant, and equipment during the year

ii

(e) Based on the inforntation and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated

during the year or are pending against the Company as of March 3L, 2025, for holding any

henami nronertv under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitionl Act, 19BB las amended in 20L6-)

and rules made thereunder.

[a) According to the inforrnation ancl explanations given to us, the colnpany does trot have any

inventory during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause [ii)(a) oi CARO 2020 is not

applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been

sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of

current assets at any point during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ii)(bl of CARO

2020 is not applicable
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records, the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to advance in the nature of loans are as follows:

[a) The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given below:

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made and terms and conditions of grant of all loans are, prima flacie, not prejudicial to the

Company's interest. The Company has not provided any guarantees, given securities and

advances in the nature of loan. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(bl is not applicable to that extent.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment

of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest
have been regular as per stipulations,

(dJ In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no amount overdue outstanding as at the

balance sheet date,

(e.) There were no advances in nature of loans which fell due during the year and were

renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to the same parties to settle the existing

overdue advances in nature of,loan.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nalure of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of

loans
Aggregate amount
granted/ provided during
the year
fiJ Holdine 276.54

[iiJ Subsidiaries
[iiiJ Ioint Ventures
Iiv) Associates
[vJ Others
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in
resDect of above cases
fil Holdine 272.84
[ii') Subsidiaries
[iiil Ioint Ventures
IivJ Associates
lvl Others

Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(0 is not applicable.
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In our opinion and according to the informalion and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans or given any guarantee or provided any securities as covered under the provisions
of section 185 of the Act, In respect of the investments made by the Company, the provisions of
section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or deemed deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act,20L3 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3

[v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examinations of the
records of the Company, the provision of sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
for maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examinations, of
the records of the Company, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident fund, employees'state insurance, income
tax, custom duty, cess and any other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the
extent applicable and further there were no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more
than six months from the date they become payable as at March 31,,2025.

(b) According to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given to us, there
are no statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State

Itrsurance, It.tcome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,

Cess or any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account ofany dispute,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, (+3

of 196I).

(aJ According to the inlormation and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not def,aulted on repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of Interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to thc information and cxplanations givcn to us and based on our examination of
records, the company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has utilized the loans

For the purpose they were taken.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the

V

vl,

vll

vlll.

lx.

Company,

Page 9 of 13



X,

XI

xii.

xlll

xlll.

S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture company during the
year and hence, reporting under clause (ixJ [eJ and [fJ of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made right issue during the year and according to the information and

explanation given to us and based on our examination of records the Company has complied with
the requirement of section 62 of the Companies Act20L3,and the funds raised have been used for
the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(aJ According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no material fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (1.2) of section 1.43 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and AuditorsJ Rules, 20L4 with the Central

Government, during the year and upto the date of audit report.

[c) According to the inlormation and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records ol the Cornpany, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section l-BB

of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disciosed in the Ind AS

Financial Statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of
Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, Clause 3 (xiii) of the order
to the extent it relates to Section 177 is not annlicable to the Comnanv.

(aJ In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the

size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company

during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

during the year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its Directors or

persons connected with its directors, therefore provisions of section I92 of the Companies Act,

MEH

XV

201.3 are not applicable to the Company
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The provisions of section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xvi) (aJ, (b), (c), and (d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company,

The Companyhas incurred cash losses of INR l-2.1.2 million duringthe financialyearand no cash

losses was incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

The previous auditors of the company have resigned during the year, we have obtained no

objection from the previous statutory auditors and no issues have been informed to us.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to

believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting is

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the company during
the current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3[xx) (aJ&ft) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

xvii

xvlll.

XIX.

XX

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N500441

MEH

Vijay Kumar
Pa rttter
Membership Number: 09267 1

UDIN:25092671 BMOFFQBO55

Place: New Delhi

Date:July 1.4,2025
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ANNEXURE "8" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the Members of Sambhv Tubes Private Limited of even dateJ

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2Ol3 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sambhv Tubes
Private Limited ["the Company") as of March 3I,2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our ar,rdit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit oF Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section

143 (10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves perforrning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our

audil of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements of

the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal f,inancial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and

procedures that [1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai], accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation

of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to

the risk that the internal linancial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our infbrrnation and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to

linancial statements and such internal f,inancial controls with reference to linancial statements were

operating ellectively as at Marclt 31, 2025, based on the irtternal control with reference to financial

statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

C h u rte re ci ac c0 Lt I I Lu t t LS

Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N5004+1

MEH

Viiay Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 09267 I
UDIN:25092671BMOFFQ8055

Place: New Delhi

Date:fuly 14,2025
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Registered Office: Office No.50l,sth floor, Harshit Corporate, Amanaka, G. E. Road, Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India-492001

Company Identifi cation Number : U27 209CT2020PTC0 10822

Ind AS Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars Notes As at
March 3I,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 01, 2023

ASSETS

A. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant & equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Inveshnent property
(d) Other non-current assets
(e) Financial assets

(i) toans

3(a)

3(b)

4

5

6

33',7.57

t.04

13.35

3.2r

)7) R4

13.35

2.84 1.t8

13.35

Total non-current assets (A)
B. Current assets

(a) Financial assets

(i) Cash & cash equivalents

(ii) Other financial assets

(b) Other cunent assets

(c) Current tax assets

7

8

9

l 5(b)

628.01

0.65

3.74

0.2s

0.57

16.19

0.t1

1.35

0.22

14.53

0.61

0.1s

0.2s

Total current assets @) 5.21 r.68 1.01

Total assets (A+B) 633.22 17.87 15.54

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
A. Equity
(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity

l0
ll

24.50

608.32

0. l0
(4.20)

0.10

(3.64)

Total equity (A) 632.82 (4.10) (3.s4)

Liabilities

B. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Bonowings l2 2t.33 18.79

'l'otal non-current liabilities (B) 21.33 18.79

C. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) 'l'rade payables

-Total outstanding dues ofrnicro enterpnses and srnall
enterpdses

- Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than rnicro and
small enterprises

(ii) Other hnancial liabilities
(b) Other cunent liabilities

(c) Current tax liabilities (net)

l3

I s(a)

l4
t4

0.34

0.06

0.06

0. l9

0.39

0.t2

0.17

Total current liabilities (C) 0.40 0.64 0.29

Total liabilities (B+C) 0.40 21.97 19.08

Total equity & liabilities (A+B+C) 633.22 17.87 I5.54

accounting policies

The accompanying notes Iefetled to above fonn an integral parl of the Ind AS financial stateutents

As per our repofi ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 000756NN500441

Partner

Membership Number: 0926'1 1

Date: July 14,2025
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Sambhv Tubes Private Limited

Director

DIN - 00318141
Date: July 14,2025

Place: Raipur

c;-76\\\f
Vikas Kumar Goyal

Director

DIN - 003 l8 I 82

Date: July 14,2025

Place: Raipur

GoyalRAIF!3
(f,.t r ' t
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited

Registered Office: Office No. 501, Sth floor, Harshit Corporate, Amanaka, G. E. Road, Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India{92001
Company Identifi cation Number z U 27 209 CT 2020m C0rc822

Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mentioned otherwise)

Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part ofthe Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership Number: 09267 1

Date: July 14,2025
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalfofBoard ofDirectors of
Sambhv Tubes Private Limited

Registration No. : 000756N/N50044 I

Kumar

P flr

,,,w.",^,
DrN - 00318141
Date: July 14,2025
Place: Raipur

aT'f\lf
Vikas Kumar Goyal
Director
DrN - 003t8182
Date: July 14,2025
Place: Raipur

F *tt'if
o
('-

3

*

Particulars Notes
For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended
March3l,2024

I. Income
(a) Revenue from operations

(b) Other income t6 5.66 2.20

Total income (I) 5.66 2.20

II. Expenses

(a) Finance costs

(b) Other expenses

t7

l8
15.99

1.79

1.92

0.45

Total expenses (II) r7.78 2.37

III. Profit{Loss) before tax (I-I)
IV. Tax expense :

(a) Cunent tax

(b) Deferred tax

(t2.t2) (0.17)

0.39

Total tax expense QV) 0.39

V. Profit/(Loss) for the year (III - IV)
VI. Other comprehensive income

(t2.t2) (0.s6)

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VI)

VII. Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year (V + \|I)
VIII. Earnings(Loss) per equity share

Basic (ln INR)

Diluted (In INR)

l9

(12.t2\

(2e.02)

(2e.02)

(0.s6)

(56.00)

(s6.00)

MEH

NE@+Hr



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Reqistered Oflice: Office No. 501,5th floor, Harshit Corporate, Amanaka. G. E, Road, Raipur, Chhattisqarh, India-492001
Company Identifi cation Number : U272O9CT202OPIC010E22
Ind AS Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars For the year ended
Mqrnh 1f 2O2{

For the year ended
March 31.2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

ProfiU(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Finance costs

Interest Income

(t2.12)

15.99

(4.16)

(0. l 7)

l.86

Operating profiV(loss) before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets

(Increase)/ decrease in other non-current assets

(Increase)/ decrease in olher cunent assets

Increase / (decrease) in other trade payables

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities

(0.2e)

1.35

(0.01)

(0.03)

0.28

(0. l 3)

1.69

( 1.20)

0.03

(0.06)

0.02

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations t,t7 0.48

I-ess : Income tax paid (net) (0.e6)

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) 0.2t 0.48

B. Cash flow from investing activiti€s

Pa)'ments for purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment including capital advances
han given to Holding company
Interest Received

(338.97\
(272.84\

0.42

( I .66)

Net cash (used in) / gcnerated from investing activities (B) (61 1.39) (r.66)

C. Cash flow from financing activities (refer note 25.4)

Proceeds fiom issue ofequity shares inluding security premium
Proceeds lionr non-currenl bonowings

Repayment of non-cun ent borrowings

Finance cost paid

649.04

358.96

(380.29)

(1 s.ee)

2.54

(1.86)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activitics (C) 611.72 0.68

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 0.54 (0.s0)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year 0.1 l 0.61

Cash and cash equival€nts at th€ end ofthe y€ar 0.6s 0.11

Particulars As at
l\{arch 3l- 2025

As at
March 31- 2024

Balances with Banks
-In cunent accounts

Cash on Hand
0.63

0.02
0.06
0.05

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 7) 0.65 0.t l

For th€ of statemcnt of cash florvs, cash and cash equiYalents cornprises of follorving

Notes:

(i) The above statement ofCash flow has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Indian Accountine Standard-7. Statement ofCash Flow
(ii) Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

Material accounting policies

The accompanfng notes refbned to above fom an integral part of tlic Ind AS financial statements.

?

As per our report ofeven date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 000756N/t{500441

Viiav Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 092 67 I

Date: July 14,2025
Place: New l)elhi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Sambhv Tubes Private Limited

PR/

"",ffi^,
DIN - 00318141

626\ri((\

C
.:"

F

Date: July 14,2025
Place: Raipw

Vikas Kumar Goval
Director
DrN-00318182

Date: July 14,2025
Place: Raipur

i

MEH

NA\PUR"(c.G.)
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Reqistered Oflice: Ollice No.501,5th floor. Harshit Corporate. Amanaka, G. E. Road, Raipur, Chhattisgarh. India-492001
Company Identifi cation Number : U27209CT2020PTC010822
Ind AS Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mentioned otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

B. Other equity

Material accounting policies 2

The accompanfng notes refened to above form an inte$al part ofthe Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

tr'or S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 000756N/N500441

Kumar Suresh

For and on behalfofBoard ofDirectors of

Sambhv Tubes Private Limited

Director

DIN - 003 l8l4l

Date: July 14,2025

Place: Raipur

e7T\\-'
Vikas Kumar Goyal

Director

DrN - 003 I 81 82

Date: July 14,2025

Place: Raipur'

k^
Partner

Membership Numbet 09267 1

Date: July 14,2025

Place: New Delhi

U)

*

Particulars Amount

As at April 01, 2023 0.10

Changes in equity share capital during the year

As at March 31, 2024 0.10

Changes in equity share capital during the year 24.40

As at March 31,2025 24.s0

Particulars Reserve & Surolus Total Other Equity

Security Prernium Retained Earning

As at April 01, 2023

I-oss for the year

Other comprehensive income (net oftax)

(3.64)

(0.56)

(3.64)

(0.s6)

As at March 31,2024

Ioss for the year

Issue ofequity share capital during the year

Other comprehensive income (net oftax)

624.64

(4.20)

(12.12)

(4.20)

(12.12)

624.64

As at March 31,2025 624.64 (16.32) 608.32

MEH
Rd?Yl

P R/

*
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identifi cation Number (CIN) : A27 209CT2020PT C010822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

1) Corporate fnformation

a) Sambhv Tubes Private Limited ("the Company") is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions ofthe Companies Act applicable in lndia. The registered office ofthe company is located at Office
No. 501, 5th Floor, Harshit Corporate, Amanaka, G. E. Road, Raipur, Chattisgarh, India,49200l.

b) The Company has yet to start its revenue operation.

c) The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on July 14,
2025.

2) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements and Material Accounting Policy

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial
Statements. These policies have been consistently applied for all years presented.

2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(hd AS) notified under section 1 33 of the Companies Act,2013 (the Act) read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements

up to year ended March 31,2024 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act
(previous GAAP).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. Refer Note 27 for
an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows.

b) Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 101 , "First Time Adoption of Ind
AS", as these are the Company's first Ind AS compliant Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,

2025. The Financial Statements correspond to the classification provisions contained in Ind AS-1
(Presentation of Financial Statements). The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from the Accounting
Princrpies generally accepted rn lndia (lndran GAAI'), which is considered as the "Previous GAAP", fbr
purposes of Ind AS - 1.

The preparation of these Financial Statements resulted in changes to the Company's Accounting Policies as

compared to the most recent Annual Financial Statements prepared under Previous GAAP, wherever
necessary. All Accounting Policies and applicable krd AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively
to all periods, including the previous financial year presented and the IND AS opening balance sheet as at

April 01, 2023 (Transition Date). The resulting difference between the carrying amounts under IND AS and

Previous GAAP as on the Transition Date has been recognised directly in Equity. An explanation of the effect
of the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the Company's equity and profit is provided tnnote27.

The Financial Statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting except and liabilities that are

NEW DELHI RAIPUR
(c.G.)

*

(o
f

reporting period, as policy set out below:
at the end ofeach



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U27209CT2020PTC010822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

a Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments)

c) Functional & Presentation Currency:

Items included in the Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the curency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates ("the functional currency"). The Financial Statements

are presented in Indian National Rupee ('INR'), which is the Company's functional and presentation

currency. AII amounts have been rounded to the nearest Millions upto two decimal places, except for share

data and if otherwise stated.

d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make

estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application

of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex

and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in
note.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances

surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.

e) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non-current based upon

the requirements of Schedule III notified under the Companies AcI,2013.

An asset has been classified as current if

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consulnption in, the Cornpany's normal operating

cycle; or

b) ii is ireici priu.rariiy it-'r iire purpose of beiug iladcci; or

c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as

non-current.

A liability has been classified as current when

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; or

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U27209CT2020PTC010822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are

classified as non-current.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net ofrecoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost

and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net

charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to
the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the
cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which they relate. Such assets are classified to the appropriate categories ofproperty,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same

basis as other assets, colnnences when the assets are ready for their intended use,

ln the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing the part of such an

item is recognised when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those

parts that are replaced is derecognised in accordance with the derecognition principles.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use ofthe asset.

Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the
dtfference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the properly, plant and equipment
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Spare parts procured along with the plant & machinery or subsequently which meet the recognition criteria,
are capitalised and added in the carrying amount of such item. The carrying amount of those spare parts that
are replaced is derecognised when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal.
Other machinery spares are treated as 'stores & spares' forming part of the inventory.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised on the cost of assets less their residual values. Depreciation is provided based on
useful life of the assets. The management has the useful life is in the useful

NEW DELHI RAIPUR
(c.G.)

life as prescribed in Schedule II of the useful life has applying



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): A27209CT2020PTC010822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

the straight-line method. Each part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately based on its' useful life.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed

at each financial year end and, ifexpectations differ fromprevious estimates, the changes are accounted for
as change in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation for each year is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss unless it is included in the

carrying amount of another asset.

For transition to Ind AS, The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property,

plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements on transition to Ind AS, measured as per the

previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

b) Investment Property

Investment property is property held for rental income, capital appreciation or the purpose of future use is

not yet determined by the management as ofthe reporting date. Investment properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits

associated with the asset will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized

in Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Investment properly is subsequently rneasured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impainnent losses, if any. Though the Cornpany measures investment properties using cost-based

measurement, the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined

based on the evaluation perfonned by the management based on the acceptable valuation method.

Investment properties are de-recognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The

difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
the Statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

c) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives

or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

rise to a financial asset ofone and a financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial cash

flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With

NEW D€LHI

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the the



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) : U27 209CT2020PT C010822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profrt or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured

at the transaction price determined under Ind AS I15.

Lr order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at

amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the

date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value th'ough other comprehensive income (FVTOCD with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses

upon derecogrition (equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

l'inancial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPD on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or arising from

o

o

a

in the profit or loss.

employees includedThe Company's financial assets

under financial assets.

NEW DELHI RAIPUR
(c.G')
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identifi cation Number (CIN) : U27 209CT2020PT C010822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 3I,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCD (debt instruments)

A 'financial asset' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling

the financial assets, and

The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting

date at fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange

revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same

manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised

in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the

equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classi$u irrevocably its equity investments as equity

instruments designated aI fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under 'Ind AS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading'. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration

recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which lnd AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as

other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the payment has been established,

except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of parl of the cost of the financial asset,

in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are

not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net

changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment has been established, which

is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at

fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an

approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from

the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there been a significant increase

risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit from default events that

a

o

NEW RA.!PUR
(c.G.)

within the next l2-months (a l2-month ECL). For for which there has



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) : A27209CT2020PTC010822
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been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other assets, the Company uses twelve-month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no
significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all classified as

current. Where the settlement is due after one year, they are classified as on-current. Trade receivables are

recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised atfair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Trade receivables are disclosed in Financial Statements.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the

effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the

debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

lncome is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets

classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in statement of profit and loss and is included in the
'Other income' line item.

Derecognition of Financial Assets:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is prirnarily derecognised (i.e removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

but has transferred control ofthe asset.

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an into a pass-

arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the ownership.

asset, nor

o

o

NEW has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U27209CT2020PTC0I 0822
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in INR Millions, except otherwise stated)

transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company

could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net

ofdirect issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain

or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, inter corporate deposits

and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories

o Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

o Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities

NEW DELHI
RAIPUR
(c.'J.)
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Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing io
the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as

such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit or loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts

approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost @orrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs

that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when

the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of fi nancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there

is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or testing for an asset is required, estimates the

asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an units
(CGU) net selling The recoverable amount is asset,
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unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where

the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and

is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market

transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate

valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized

impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company

estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss

is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable

amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss

been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

The Company assesses whether climate risks, including physical risks and transition risks could have a

significant impact. If so, these risks are included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.

d) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to cornpute the amount are those that are enacted

or substantively enacted, at the reporling date in the countries where the Company operates and generates

taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in corelation to the

underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax refllrns urilh reqpqqf to sifr,rations rn .l'hich applicable tax- reg'-tlations are -c1lhject 1o interpretation

and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences

b) In respect oftaxable associated with interests

when the timing of differences can

and joint ventures,

is probable that the

RAIPUR
(c.G.)

temporary the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal

taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised

to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In assessing the recoverability of defened tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions

used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things,

reflect the potential impact of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of
production as a result of rneasures to reduce carbon emission.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside Statement

of Profit and Loss (in other comprehensive income). Defeffed tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the

urderlying transaction either in Statement of Profit and Loss or in OCI.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set offcurrent
tax assets against curent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

e) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015

via notifications dated August 12,2024, and Septernber 09,2024, to introduce the new Ind AS ll7 i.e.,

"Insurance Contracts" and amended the Ind AS 116 i.e. Leases, respectively. Both are effective frorn April
0l,2024.

Ind As 117 is not applicable to the Company and the amendments in Ind AS 116 did not have any material

impact on the amounts recognized and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(ii) Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no such standards or amendment issued which are not effective as on date.

NEW DELHI
RA'PUR
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3(a) Prop€rg, pl.trt & equipneot

As rt March 31,2025

Pafriculan Gross ernitrs vllue Accumulaled deprft lstiod Nd srrying valuc

As at
Apd 01,2024

Addidons Sal6 As al
Mrrch 31,2025

A! at April 01,
2024

Dcprelatlon for
the year

Sal6 As at

Mrrch 31,2025
As 8i

Mrrch 31, 2025
As et

Msrch 31,2024

F@hold Lmd 2.84 334.13 33',t.51 137.5',1 2.E4

Total 2.U 334.73 337 -57 337 51 2.t4

As ei Marcb 2024

Gross caryinq velue

As at
April 0t,2023

Additlons Sals
March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Dcprelation for
theyear

Sales As at
March 31, 2024

As rl
March 31,2024

Ai at
April 0r,2023

Frehold Lad Ll8 1.66 2.84 2.84 1.18

Total l.l8 1.66 2.84 2.E4 1.t8

Net value

Theaggregatede?rcialion has bm included underdqxffialion ild monisation dps€ in the slalemen! ofPDfit ild Loss.

on April 01, 2023. The ddails oflhe Grcss errying value and the A@mulaldl depr€iation d on April 01, 2023 are s ptrbelow Note (c).

Gross Carryitrg Value ofasscts as on datc oflransltlon:
value and nd valueofAssds

:t(b) Capilrl work-in-progrcss

Paniculars Gross carrying
valuc

Acctrmulatcd
dcpreciation

Nct carrying
value as on 0I
April 2023 (as

decmed cost)

Frehold land t.l8 l.l8
Total l.tE l.l8

As at Morch 2025

Panlculars As al
April 0t,2024

Addiflons Capitaliscd
duritrg thc ycar

Sale As at
frtarch 31, 2025

Capital Work-in-Prcg16s 1.04 t.04
Total 1.01 r.01

As al Nlarch 2021

Pafriculars As at
April 01,2023

Additions Capltaliscd
during the year

Sale As at
Itlarch 31, 202d

CaDital \Vork-in-Pmfr6s

Total

Capilal-$'ork-in Progrcss (C\\'lP) agcing schcdulc

CWIP As at iYarch 31, 2025

Amount in CWIP for a v€ar of

Lcss than I ycar 1-2 years 2"3 r$rs l\Iorc than 3 Icarr Total
Prcjsrs in prcgrGs

Pmids iemDomrilv srrDmdql

I04 l.{J4

Total 1.01 t.01

C\\'IP at

Amoutrt in C\1'lP for a vaar of
Less than I I'car l-2 vcars 2-3 \'cars l\tore than 3 lears Total

Prcjds in prcgrss

Prcids teilDomrilv susDended

To(al

There were no Capitaljvork-in progrss dd Intangible assds uDder development, Nhose mDpldion is overdue or ha excesded its @il
*mpa*d lo ils originalplil 

-- ,..*.*-,\

t
L

I
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4

a. The Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carryrng amount at the date of transition to Ind AS. On
the date of transition, the company has selected the option as per para DTAA of Ind AS l0l . Accordingly the canyrng value of all Properfy, Plant and
Equipnrent as on the date of transition has been recognised as the deerned cost. Consequently the written down value has been considered as Gross
canying value as on Apnl 0l, 2023. The details of the Gross carrying value and the Accumulated depreciation as on April 0l, 2023 arc as per below
Note (c).

b. lnformation income and of investment

c. Fair value ofinvestment property:
The f-air value ofinvestrnent property has been detennined by the rnanagement using the prevailing circle rates applicable to the same location and are

considered to be a fan'representation at which such property can be sold in an active market. The Cornpany has used the seruices ofa registered valuer in
accordance with rule 2 ofCompanies (Registered valuer and valuation) Rules, 20 I 7) for the valuation ofthe investment prcperty.

Particulars Freehold land Total
Gross Carrvins Value

As at April 01. 2023 r 3.35 13.35

Additions
Disposals

As at March 31,2024 t 3.35 13.3s
Additions
Disoosals

As at March 31. 2025 13.35 13.3 5

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01.2023
Depreciation for the year

Disposals

As at March 31,2024
Depreciation for the vear
Disposals

As at March 3f .2025

Net Carrvins Value
As at Anril 01. 2023 13.35 13.35

As at March 31,2024 13.35 13.3 5

As at March 31,2025 13.35 13.3 5

Particulars
For the year ended March

3r" 202s

For the vear ended

March 31. 2024
Rental income

l)itcct oneratins exnenses ofntnneffv thaf senemted rerrtal incorne
1.50 2.20

Profit from investment oroperties before denreciation 1.50 2.20
Denreciation charse
Profit from investment properties 1.50 2.20

Description of item of property

Frcehold land 21.55

For the year ended

tJ025
2t.50

For the year ended
31,20?4

NEW D€LHI
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5 Oth€r non-current assets

Particulars As at
March 31.2025

As at
March 31.2024

As at
Aoril 01.2023

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances

Security deposit

3.20

0.01

Total 3.21

6 Loan

Particulars As at
March 31- 2025

As at
March 31.2024

As at
ADril 01. 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Ilan to holding company (refer note 20) 272.84

Total 272.E4

7 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Balances with Bank
-In curent accounts

Cash on hand
0.63
0.02

0.06
0.05

0.50
0.1 I

Total 0.65 0.11 0.61

8 Other financial assets

Particulars .A.s at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Unsecured, consider€d qood

Other recoverable from holding company (refer note 20) 3.74 1.35 0.15

Total 3,74 1.35 0.15

9 Other current assets

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

C)ther advances

Balance with govemment authorities

0.04

0.zl

0.22 0.25

Total 0.25 0.22 0.25

NEW D€LHI
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10.3

t0 share

share at the and et the end of

10.2 Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

(a) The company hs only one class ofequity shares having at par value oflNR I 0 per share. Each holder ofequity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

proponion to the number olequity shares held by the shareholdeG.

Name of Shareholders

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
Aprll 01, 2023

Number of Shares 70 of Holditrg Nutrrber ofShares % ofllolding Number ofShares % of Holding

Sanbhv Steel lubs Limited{ ?4 s0 0n0 tooo/"
*including 100 shares held by Viks Kumar Goyal 6 nominee shdeholder

10.4 Shareholders nore than 59/o sharc

x*including 100 shares held bl \/ikas Kumar Go]al as norninee sharcholdcr

Shares hekl b) promolen al lhe end ol the year

***including 100 shtu s held by Vik6 Kurnar Coyal 6 norninee sharcholder

Nane ofpromoter

As at
March 31,2024

As at
ADril 01,2023

Yo Chatrge during
the lear

Number ofShares
9/o of total shar€s

Number of Shares
9/o of total share!

r ono

5,000 509/o

5 000

s 00n s09i 09/o

10,000 1000/a 00/t

S,'rF.h K,iln.r G^\'al

Kumar

i)

ffl
t-"

Partlculan

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
Apdt 01,2023

Number ofSheres Amoutrt Number olShaies Amount Number ofShares Amoul

Authoriad Share Capiial

Equity Shde Capital of INR 10 ech 30,00,000 30.00 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00

Issued, subscribed atrd fully paid up

Equity Shee Capital of INR 10 €ch 24,50,000 24.50 10,000 0. l0 10,000 0.10

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As .t
Apr[ 01,2023

Particulars
Nnmber ofShares Amount Number ofShares Amount Ntrmber of Shar€s Amounl

Balance as at the beginning ofthe year

Changes during the yeu
10,000

24,40,000

0. l0
24.40

t0,000 0. l0 10,000 0.10

Balance as at the end ofthe year 24,s0,000 24.50 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10

Name ofShareholders

As at
March ll,2025

As at
lUarch -31, 202.1

As at
April 01, 2023

Number of Shares 7o of Holding Number ofShares % of Holding Nilnrber of Shares 9/" of Holding

Suresh Kumar Uoyal

Manoj Kumar Goyal

Sambhv Steel Tubes Limitedx+ 24,50,000

00,4

Iri
100%

5.000

s,000
509',0

s0%

00/r

5.000
s,000

5091

5001

00,1

As rt
i\tarch 31.2025

,{s at
Ntarch 31.2024

Name of promolcr

Number ofShares
9/o oftolal shares

Number of Shares
70 oftotal sharcs

7" Chaf,ge during
the period

Suresl Kunrar Go)al

Marroj Kunar Coyal

Smbhv Steel Tubes Limited*x* 24,50,000

091

09'a

1000/a

5,000

5,000

s09,0

50%

0o/o

- l00q'(

-1009i

1000/a

Total 24,50,00t 100% 10,00( t00% -1000/a

NEW DF'LH\
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(c.G.)

*



Register€d Officc: OlRc€ No, 501, sth tlmrr Hrrshlt Corpor.te, Amndq G, E. Roaq Rrlps, Chhftisgsrh, ltrdid49200l
ComD.ny lderdfi c.tion Nunber : U27209CT2020mC010t22
Not6 to tbe Ind AS FlMdclol Sbtemcrts foryear edded March 31,2025
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ll
Pardculrrs

As et
Mrrch 31,2025

Al rt
March 31.2024

As.t
ADril 01.2023

A. Rctaldcd earniog!
surpls (deficit) in drc sbtffit of profit and l6s
Bala@ at th€ beiming of the yar

(tlH mmrFif,ctue itr m and of bxl

(4.201

(tL.12)

(3.64j

(0.561

(r.64:

d6Jtl (4.201 {3.64'

Balan@ at thc b€iming of tbe y6r
Add:- Addition &riru the yar 624.64

624.@

608.32

1l.l Nrtsrc and purpose ofresencs
Retoln€d earnings:

sbt(mt of pro{it and loss is a fi@ r6fle available to the Cotrpany.

Olhs Cotrprehffive In@re | It includd re-lmsuffint loss / (g.in) on delined benefit obligatios, nd of tax6 that will not be r@lassified to lnd AS shtemt of Prof t and Loss.

Securltlcs prcmlum:

12 Borrowings (at omortised cost)

Particulars
As st

Marcb 31,2025
As ot

ltarch3l,2024
As ot

Aprll 01,2023

Utrecured loons

Loan iom other related Dartie (refer note 20) 21.3\ 18.79

ll70
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R€gistcred Oflice: Omcc No.50l,stb flmr, Harshit Corporate, Amansk& C, E. Road, Rrlpur, Chhatdsgarh, Indlr-492001
Company ldentifi cation Numbcr : U27209CT2020PTC0l 0t22
Notes to the ltrd AS Fiosocial Sbtcmetrts for ycar ended March 31,2025
(AIl amounls itr Indlan Rup€es milliorq udless m€trtioncd oth€ruis€)

P{niculars As at
March 31,2025

A! at
Mar.h3l,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Trade payobles

Oils rad€ Davabls 0.34 0.06 0.12

nn6 n It

13.1

Particulars As at
M^r.h tl- 2025

A! at
March 31.2024

As at
ADril 01.2023

(a) Total oBbndiig du6 of miso and sroll 6terpris6
ftr) Tobl otrhtandinc drR of .r€diton othn rbn mido and smll enhnsR

0.14

0.06 012
014 006 0 t2

Dlsclosurc ofdue to thc "Iticro, Small and Iltedium Enterprlscs Devclopmcnt (MSMED) Act, 2006"

The Corpany has min du6 to supplies registered uder Mino, Smll and Medim Enterpriss Dwelopmt Act 2006 ('MSMED Ad'). The disclosuc pusMnt to lhe said NTSMED Ad is as follows:

Particulars As at
Mcr.h 1l- 2025

As at
Mrrch 31. 2024

As at
ADril 01. 2023

a). Principal ammt du€ lo supplim r€istered rmdtr the MSMED Act and r@ining lipaid as at y@r end;

b). Interet due to supplies registered Mder th€ MSMED Act and remining unpaid as at y@r mdj

c). Principal amuts paid to suppliere registsed uds the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day duing lhe y@r;

d). The amoMt ofinteret paid by the buyer in tens ofs@tion l6 ofthe MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounb ofthe palmnt Mde to the supplier beyonc
lhr appoinled day duing qch a@uting yol

e). The amst ofinteret due and payable for dre yar of delay in ruking payrent (which bave ben paid but beyond the appointed day duing the ydr) but

without adding lhe interGt sp@ified Mdq theMSMED Act 2006;

t. The amunt of inttrGl acmed and r€mining unpaid at the md of @ch accouting yer;

g). The amoMt of fitrtlF intergt re@ining due and payable wm in the $cctrding yqN, until such date when the interst du6 as above are actually paid tc
$e s@ll mterprise for drcpurposeof disallowaneas a deductible expendituewder setion 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

0.34

13.2 Tradc payablcs agcing

As at l\larch 202s

Particulars
Otrtslandins for follosine tears from due dale oftransaclion

Itor. thin 3 !o'rr Torrl
0.34 0.34

0.14

Particulars

(i) Tolal outslanding dus ofnicro and srmll enlerprisc
(ii) Tolal oubtanding dus ofcreditoB odrcr tlun micro andsroll sterprisc
(iii) Disputed dus ofmicro and smll enterpriss
(iv) Disputed du6 ofcreditoE other than micro and sroll enterprisG

Not Duc 2-3 l\toic lhan 3 Tolal

0.06

Total 006 006

As al

r'Arrlr rr,
(c.G.)

$
r

Not Duc Less than I illorc than 3 Total
Particulars

012 0.r2

012

(i) Total outstanding drs ofmicro and srull enterr,risc
(ii) Tohl ouatanding dus ofcreditors odler dDn micro and s@ll ertcrprisg

lxu ursPur4 qu6 o1 nxcro ar0 silull erlerpils6
Liv) Dispilted du6 ofcreditors odrr dun micro and snull einerpr is6

Totel 0.1 2

NEW D€LHI
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Reglstered Of,lc.: Ofllce No.50l,sth B@r, H{rsblt Corporatg Amrrk& G, E. Ror4 Rslpur, Cbhattlsgarb ldla-492001

Comprtry ldentlli.sdotr Nmbcr : U272{BCT2020PIC0I0I22
Notcs to the hd AS nMtrclrl St{l€metrb for year erded March 31,2025
(All amounts ln Indhn RuDes mlllloq uds meddotrcd othernlre)

ti Otherlhbllldd

Pardculars As at
March 3t,2025 March3l,2024

As at
Aprll 0I.2023

Sbtutor dr6 @vable OM 019 nt7
0-06 0-t?

15 lncomeTuLlabllltlevAsb

O) CurrentTaxAssels

Pailiculars As at
March 31,2025

As ot
March 31,2024

As ot
April 01,2023

0.57

0.57

Perticulars As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Opoing provision for in@re tax

Lss: bx6paid
Addr Refunds

Add:Orrentt t ernmse

0.39
(0.39)

0.39

*
a

*

Paniculars
As rt

March 31, 2025

As et
Mrrch 3I,2024

As st
Aprll 01,2023

olgProvision for inom hx

NEW D€THI RAIPUR
(c.c.)
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Registered Office: Office No.501,5th floor, Harshit Corporate, Amanakao G. E. Road, Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India-492001
Company Identification Number : U27209CT2020PIC010822
Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements for year ended March 3L,2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mentioned otherwise)

16 Other income

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended
March3l,2024

Lease rent ffom holding company (refer note 20)

Interest income on loan to holding company

1.50

4.16

2.20

Total 5.66 2.20

l7 Finance cost

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended

March3l,2024

Interest on unsecured loan

lnterest on unsecured Loan-Holding company

Others finance cost

0.89

15.05

0.05

1.86

0.06

Total 15.99 1.92

18 Other expenses

18.1 Details of payment to auditors

for Special Purpose Interim Statements of INR 0. l5 million (March 31,2024:

MEH A

N[:W DELHI

. ",.r:. F
' (.\:, r'--

r.l 
J

f,]
I

*

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended
March3l,2024

Auditor's remuneration (refer note I 8. I )
ROC filing fees

Share issue expenses

Electrical expenses

Foreign cunency exchange loss

Legal & professional expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

0.34

0.40

0.01

0.92
0.12

0.02
0.01

0.06
0.36

Tofal 1.79 0.4s

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2025

For the year ended

March3l,2024

Audit fees*
Ce(ification Fees

0.30
0.04

0.02

Total 0.34 0.02



Resistered Olfice: Ollice No.5Ol.sth ll@r! Hanhtt Corporate, Amanaka, G. E, Road, Rripur. Chhattbs.rh. India-492001
ComDany ld€trtlficatlon Nuber r U27209CT2020PIC010822
Notes to the ltrd AS Fhancial Staaements for year ended March 31, 2025
,an unless menlioned

l9 namhg per share (EPS)

Bdic mings pq shae have ben @puted by dividing prcfit aflribubble to equity sh4eholdq by the weighted av@ge numbd of equity shd6 oubhding for the yw.
Diluted mings p6 shde have bfrn @mputed by dividing profit athibutable to equity shdeholdtr by lhe weighted avtrage numbtr of shd6 ed diluted potential equity shd6
oubtanding fo the ytr.

The following table reflrcts the incof,e ild shde dab ued in the b6ic md diluted EPS @mputatios i

ParticuLn For the year etrded
March 31, 2025

For tbe year ended
March 31,2024

Fac€ value ofequity shd6 (Rs. l0 pff shde)

Proflt attrlbutable to equity shareholders (A) (12.t2) (0.56)

Equity shd6 at the begiming of the yea

Impact of fr6h issue €ffected during tbe y*
Mrr.h 1l tO?S qll^h.nf 

^f?r' dn OOO .h2ra rf f... vrl',F ^fINR lO F,.h /Mar.h 1l ?O?4 Nill

10,000

4.0"t,'t&l

10,000

Weighted averag€ number ofequlty shares for baslc EPS (B) 4,1 7,781 t0,000

Basic EPS (Amout in INR ) (A/B) (29.02) (s6.00)

Effect ofdilution:
Weighted average number ofpotential equity shdes 4,11 ,',78t 10,000

Weighted lverage number ofequity shares adjusted for the effect oldilution (C) 4,17,181 r0,000

Diluted EPS (Amoun( itr INR ) (A/C) (29.02) (s6.00)

20 Related party disclosures

Related pafy disclosurq, o required by Ind AS 24, "Related Party Disclosure", rvith whom hatractiotr have hken place during the year are given below:

a) Holding Companyl

Sambhv Steel Tubs Limited rv.e.f. September 16, 2024

(till Septentbet I 5, 2024, it vus enterprise over wltich KMP ha.l sigttificant influence)

b) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (with whicl, (he Compary las transactiotrs)i
(i) Shri Viko Kuma Goyal Executive Ditector

(ii) Shri SureshKumaGoyal ExecutiveDirector

c) Relatives oI Key Manageriat Personnel (with s hich, the Company has transaclions)l
(i) Shri Mmoj Kumar Coyal Brother ofsuresh Kumar Ooyal

d) Enterprise oYer which KMP had significant influence
Sambhv Steel Tubes Limited till Septembo 15. 2024

Anjaneya Minerals Private Limited

20.1 Details oftransaction during the year rvith related parties

Nature of balance Partr" Name
As al

Marrh 31,2024

As a{
April 01,2023

Notr-current borrorvitrgs Sdnbhv Stel Tubes Ltd

Sureh Kuma Coyal 4.Sg 4.61

Vikd Kume Goyal 4.13 3.82

Mmoj Kumd Goyal 12.21 10.36

Smbhv Stel Tubs Ltd 272.83

rntara.f r..eivrhla 
^n 

nn...nrad l^.n Smbhv Stel Tubs Ltd 1.74

Other recovenbles Smbhv Stel Tub6 Ltd 1.35 0.15

As at
March 31,2025

Na(ure of transacfion Parfu Nanre
For the yearended

March 31,2025
For the !'ear ended

March 31,2024

[rnsecured Ioan r€ceiv€d Satnbhv Steel Tubes Ltd 358.96

Manoi Kumar Goyal r.00

lJnsecurcd loan given Sambhv Steel Tubes Lil )16.54

llnsectrred loan rcccived back Serbll!' Steel Tubes Ltd 3.'11

expense on msecured borrowing Suresh Kumd Goyal 0.21 0.42

Vik6 Kumd Goyal 0.1 7 0.35

Mmoj Kuma Goyal 0 st 0s5
Smbhv Steel Tubs Ltd 15.05

RepalJnenl of unsccured borroNing (includilrg inleresl on borro\rfulg) Suresh Kunar Goyal -5.20

Viks Kumar Coyal 4:]l
Mmoj Kund Goyal 1212

Steel Tubes Ltd 314.01

l.)u
4.i6
0. r0

t.lu

NEWO€tHt
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(c.G.)

*

t

P

$
|-



Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Registered Office: Office No.501,Sth floor, Harshit Corporate, Arnanaka, G. E. Road, Raipur. Chhattisgarh, India-492001

Company Identilication Number I U27209CT2020PTC0l 0822

Not€s to the Ind AS Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts ln lndian Rupees millions. unless mentioned otherwis,:)

2l Financial ratios

22 Contingent liabilitis and commitments (to the extent not pro''ided for) - NIL

ff1PUR
.G.,1

'?P,l

t:

T

Reason for Variance

Increase in mtio due to.increase in other
financiel assefs

Ratio has been improved since unsecured
deht hes heen rcnrid

Decrease in ratio since eamings available
for debt services has been decreased

Ratio has been decreased since Net
profit has been decreased and

shareholder's equity has been increased.

Ratio has been decreased since Net
profit has been decreased.

oh Chrnge

396.19o/o

-100.00%

-65.87%

-126.310/o

-93.99%

As at
M*ch31-2024

2.63

-5.20

0.71

14.660/o

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

t0.16%

NA

As at
Merch 11 7O7{

13.03

0.00

0.24

-3.860/o

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

0.61%

NA

Denoninator

Cunent liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Interest & lease palments + principal
repayments

Average shareholders' equity

Average Inventory = (Opening and
Closins Inventorv)/2

Average Accounts Receivable

Average Accomts Payables

Working capital = Cunent assets -
cunent liabilities
Net sales : total sales - sales retums

Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth
+ Total Debt + Defened Tax Liability

Cost oflnvestrnents

Numerator

Cunent assets

Ioral debt

Eamings available for debt servic:s = Net profit (eaming
after taxes) + Non-cash operating expenses like
depreciation and odler amortizations + Interest + other
adjustrnents like loss on sale offi (ed assets

"Net Profit after tax" means repo 1ed amount of"Profit /
(loss) for the year" and it does not include items ofother
comprehensive income.

Net profit after taxes - preference dividend (ifany)

Cost ofgoods sold or Sales

Net credit sales consist ofgross credit sales - sales retum.

Net credit puchases consist ofgrlss credit purchases -
ourchase retlm-

Net sales = total sales - sales retuas

Net Profit after tax

Eamings before interest and taxes (EBIT)

Profit on sale ofinvestments

Ratios

Cunent ratio

Debt-equity ratio

Debt service coverage ratio

Retum on equity ratio

Inventory tumover mtio

Tradc receivables turnover
mfio

Trade payables tumover ratio

Net capital tumover ratio

Net Drofit mtio

Retum on capital employed

Rehrm on invesfment

NE\J ffiLHI



Sambhv Tubes Private Limlaed
R€gistered Omcer Office No. 501, sth flmr, H.mhit Corpomte, Amanakr, G. E, Road, Raipu' Chhrttisgarb' lndla49200t

Compatry Identificatlon Nmber : U27209CT2020PIC010822

Notes to the Iod AS Financial Stalemenls for year end€d Mrrch 31, 2025

(All amoutrts in hdian Rupres millio6, unless mcrtiotred olheilise)

23 Capitsl Risk Matragement

sftucnfe.

ben, ed is expected to @ntinue lo be, 6h genmted from ib opqatiom supplmented by funding from bank bonowings. The Compmy is not subjst io dy extmally imposed €pibl requirments.

b6ed on the working capihl requirment utilise the working opital lom.

c6h ed 6h equivalents md curent inv6frens.

Th€ g€aring ratio at end ofthe reporting period was as follossr

Note: There is no outstuding bonowing a on March 31, 2025. Hence , CGR is not required to be calculated.

(i) Equity includs ali capital md rsenes of the Compey that de managed s capihl.

(ii) D€bt is defined 6 long and shon tem bororvings (excluding derivatives and financial gudantee contracts)

24 FaiI Value measurem€nts:

(i) Flnancial insfruments by category

As at March 31,2025

n1

WTPI, WTOCI Amofris€d Cost

Non-current finrncial assels

At Amortized cost
(i) Loans

Current linanclal ass€ts

At amorlized cost
(i) C6h & c6h eauivalents
(ii) Other financial assets

Currcnt financial liabilities
At Amorti4d cost
li) Trrde navables

2'72.84

0.6s
1.74

0.34

RAlplyp.'
(c.c.l

F\''TPI n/Tne I

Current fi nrncial assels

At emodized cost
(i) Cdh & c6h equi\ aleilts
(ii) Olhcr financial assets

Non-currenl fi nancial liabilities
At Amorti4d cost
(i) Borowings

Current financirl liabililies
At AmortiTf,d cosl

0 61

0 t5

18.79

it)
The carrying mounb of mde r*eivabl6, trade payable, epital ffediton, csh ed 6h e4uivalents, othd baik balm6, oths
disclGed) de cosidered to be the sme d their fair valus, due to their shon tm nature.

S

r-

Partlculars
As at

March 31,2025
As at

March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Non-cun€nt bonowings

Inrcrst 2..nred an.l nol dre 6n horowinss

2t.33 18.79

Gross Debt 2t.33 18.?9

Lss : C6h ild C6h Equivalents 0.1 I 0.61

Net Debt (A) 2t,44 19.40

Iotal Equity (As per Balance Sheet) (B) (4.10) (3.54)

Net G€aring (A,rB) (5.23) (s.48)

-Ey-rQe_l._.__

21 ll

0.l l
l.35

Currcnt flnailcirl asscls
At enrortized cosi
(i) Cash & cash equivalents
(ii) Other financial 6sets

Non-current fi nanciel liahilities
At Amortiz€d cost
(i) BoroNjngs

Current finNncial liabili(ies
At Amortized cost

.ryII!,. .,.

NEW DELHI I
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Regtsacred omce: omce No. 501, 5th fl@r, Hanhti corpomte, Amanaka, G. E. Road, Ralpur, Chhattlsgafh, lndir-492001

Company ldetrllticatiotr Nmber : U27209CT20209fC0f 0822

Nots to the Ind AS FhanciNl Stalemetrls for year etrded March 31, 2025

(AU amouls ln ltrdi.n Rup€es mllllos. unless mentlored otheillsc)

(il) Fair value hienrcby

Tbis sectlotr erplahs lhc judgemetrts ard estlnales made ln d€temitring the fairvalues of lhe linanctal lnstlmetrts that are l-
(a) rmgnised ud mruured at fair value md
(b) m6ur€d at mortised Gt md ftr which fair valu6 d€ disclGed in the finecial statmmts.

e a below

the stak exchmgG is valued Ning the clGing price 4 at the teporting ytr

Level3: If one o! more of the signifi@t inputs is not baed on observable mdket data, fte imtsument is included in level 3.

The compmy d6n't have my i6trumflt which wa value o FVTPL or FVTOCI 6 on Mach 31, 2025, Mrch 31,2024, nd Apil0l,2023.

(lll) V|luation technique us€d to determlne falr value
Specific valuation techniqus used to value finilcial itrmments include:

a) lhe fair valus ofthe FVTOCI invstments tre dtrived from quoted market prics in active mdkets

b) the fair value of foqard foreign exchmge @ntracts ed principal swap i$ detemined Eing foNdd exchmge nts at the balmce sheet date.

period. The own non-perfoman@ risk wd $sessed to be imignificmt.

measxred at
As ai April 01,2023As at March 31, 2025 As at March 3I,2024

Falr V.lueCarrylns Amount Fair Value Carrying AmoutrtCarrylng Amout Falr Valu€
Partlculars

0.12

18.79

0.61

0.15

21.33

0.06

0.1 l
t.35

21.33

0.06

0.1 I

1.35

18.79

0. l2

0.61

0.r5

272.84

0.34

0.65

3.14

2'72.84

0.34

0.65

3.'74

Notr-current fmancial assets

At Amortlz€d cost

(i) laaN

Current linatrcial ass€ts

At amortlzed .ost
(i) C6h & c6h equivalents

(ii) Other finmcial 6sets

Non-current linancial liabilltles

At Amortized cost

(i) BonoNings

Current financial liabilities
(i) Trade payabls

NEW D€LHI RAIPUR
(c.G.)
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Sambhv Tubs kivrte Llnlted
Reglstered Olllcer Office No. 501, sth fl@r, Errshit Corpor.te, Amanek., G. E Rord' Ralpur, Cbhatttsgarb' lndla-492001

Company tdentificrtlon Numbcr : U27209CT20201{C010E22

Notes to the lnd AS limncl.l Statements for year ended March 3l' 2025

(All lmounts itr Indl.n Rupees rrllliotrs, unles fiontloned othetrlse)

25 Flnanclal Rltk Mrmgement:

"*p*ion. 
th" C'o-prty has vaiou finmcial uets sch 6 los dd 6h & 6h equival@ts, which dis dirstly ftofi ib opaatios.

The Compayis *posed to mdketrisk, qeditrisk md liquidityrisk. The Compmy's Boud of Dir*tonovmq_th€ managmft of th6erisk md also eNrs that fmcialrisk activitiG de govmedby

appropriate polici*od proc€duG ild tlut fimcial risk ue identified, mmred md mmaged in amrdoe with the Compmy's policie od risk objwtivc'

25.t Markot rlsk
M{ket risk is the risk that the fair value of fuhre 6h fows of a fmcial iNtrmqt will fuctate b@se of chmgs in mdket pri6. Mik€t dsk compris6 thr€ t)p6 of risk: intqGt rate risk' onmr

following sectiom relate to the position 6 at Mdch 3 1, 2025' Msch 3 I '2024, 
Ap'il0l'2023'

(l) Forelgn exch.nge risk!
The compmy,s foreign exchmge risk uise liom foreign cur@cy revenuG &d €xpeNs, (primaily in US Dollffi). The compmy's finctional cunency is Indim Rupe$ (lNR) The compiy hE not

undertaken ay foreign curflcy hmaction during the yee. Therefole the compmy is not exposed to the Foleign exchmge risk

(ltl) lnterest rate risk

de borowed at fixed intsdt rat6

The following lable provides a of the

Particulers As at
M'r.h 3l- 2025

As at
Mrrh il- 2024

As at
Anrll Ol 2O21

21.33 18.79
rate

bonowings
21,33 18.79

lnterest rate sensltivlty analysls

The compdy dos not have ttre Floating rate borovings thsefore the Intdst rate seGtivity is not appli@ble.

25,2 Credlt Rtsk

activitie, including deposib with banks od financial i6titutioN, and oiher financial itrmments

NEW DELHI J.t ?'J"
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Srmbhv Tube$ ktvrt€ Llntled
Rcglstered Ofllcer Ofnce No. 50l,5th n@r, Harshlt Corponte, Am.nak., G. E. Rord, Raipur, Chhs(tisgsrh, lndh-492001

Company Identifi crtiotr Number : U27209CT2020P[C010822

Not6 to the hd AS trin.nclrl Statemenls for year €nded Mrrch 31, 2025

(All emounts in ltrdian Rupes millions, unlN mentloncd oth€dlse)

25.3 Llquidlty Rlsk Management:

affiibility of mh md 6h equival€nts md additional undrawn fimcirg facilitiG. The Compuy will @nfmue to a6idd vdious bonowings optioro to milimise liquidity dd spplmmt 6h

undis@unted 6h flows of finmcial liabilitie b6ed on tbe @li6t date on which the Compuy ru be required to pay.

The table bclude both iltq6t ud principal 6h flows.

Compmy may be required to pay.

as at March 31,2025

Partlculars Carrylng Amount
Less than I t-5 More than 5 years Total

Flnanclal ltabllities

Bofiowings

T.ade payabls 0.34 0.34 0.34

Tot.l financlal llabllltles 0.34 0.34 0.14

Particulars Cqrrying Amount
Contractual Cash Flows

Less than I verr I - 5 years More than 5 years Total

Fimncial liabllltles

Bonowings

Trade payablc
21.33

006 0.06

2t.33 2t.33

0.06

Iotal financial liabllities 21.39 0_06 21.33 21.39

as at 01,2023

Particullrs Carrying Amount
Contrsctual Cash Flows

Lesr than I year I - 5 years More than 5 years Totel
Flnancial liabilities

Borowings

Trade payables

t8.79 18.19 18.'79

M
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Srmbhv Tubes Prlvatc Llmlted
Reglstered Oflic€r Omce No. 501, sth tl@r, Hrrshlt Corpomt€, Amnakr, G. E, Road, Rripur' Chh.ttlJgsrh' Indlr-492001

Comprny ldentlfi crtlon Number : U27209C"I202OPIC0fiA22

Not6 to the ltrd AS trltrrnclal Strtements for year cnded Mrrch 31,2025

(AlI rmounts ln Indl.n Rups mllllons, unles mentloned otheilise)

25,4 Rdoncilirtion of mov€me trt of li8bilities to cash floss ar'Bing from financing activities

Particulars

Non Cunent
(includirg cunetrt

mturities)
Cunent Borowitrgs

Issue ofshar€ capitrl
includirg securities

premiuD
Interest accrued Lease lisbility

Opening balmce

Interest Expflse
Cash flows (net)

Non-cash hesactionvfab value chilses

21.33

(21.33)

t5.99

(15.99)

0.10

649.04

Closino hahnce 649-14

Particulars For the vear ended March 31.2024

Nou Current borrowitrgs
(ircluditrg curretrt

maturities)
Curretrt Borrowings Interest accrued

Issue ofshare capital
including securities

premium
Lease liability

Opening balance

lnterest Exp€nse

Cash flows (net)
N6n-crsh lrrnsactions/fair value chanoes

18.79

2.54

1.86

(1.86)

0.10

2r -31 0_10
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Sambhv Tub€s Private Limited
Register€d Ofiice: Ofhce No. 501, 5th flmr, Harshit Corporat€, Amanaka, G. E. Rmd, Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India-492001

Company Identifi cation Number z U27209CT2020PTC0t0t22

Notes to the lnd AS Fimncial Statem€nts for year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mentioned oth€ryise)

26 Otber Statutotory ltrformation:-

i. No prmedings have been initiated or p€nding against compmy for holding my benami property under prohibitions of Benami Trilsactions Act,l988 (wliffi titled as Benami
Trmsctions (Prohibitions) Act,l988

ii. No chrges ofsatisfication il€ pending for registration with the Registrtr ofcompmies (ROC) beyond statutory period.

iii. The Compmy has not traded or bvested in cr)?to Cwency or virtual cuency duing the fnmcial yer.
iv' The compmy has not advmced or lomed or invested fuds to my other persons or etrtities including the foreign eDtities ( intenneditries) with the understmding that the

intemediary shall :

a). Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or €ntities identified in my mmer whatsoever or on behalf of the Company ( ultirnate beneficiries) or
b). Provide my gurmtee, secuity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

v. The Compmy has not receiyed my funds fiorn my persons or entities including the foreign €ntities ( intenneditries) with the understanding (whether recorded in the writing or
not) that the intennediary shall :

a). Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in ily nmer whatsoeyer or on behalf of the Funding Party ( ultirnate beneficiaies) or

b). Provide my gurmtee, s€cuity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiries.

vi The Cornpmy did not have my trmsaction which was not recorded in the books ofaccounts tbat was sunendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the lncome Tax Act,l96l (such as search or survey or my other relevmt provisions ofthe Income Tax Act,l96l,

vii. There has been no arnount which is required to be transfened to lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Cornpany,

viii. Compmy has not bonowed any fund frorn Bmks and Finmcial lnstitution so quarterly retms/staternent of curent assets is not required to be filed by Compmy with Bmks and
Financial Institution.

ix. The Cornpany is not declared a wilfull defaulter by my Bark or Financial Institution or any other lender.

x. The Courpany has no subsidiary as on March 31, 2025. The clause (87) of section 2 of the Compmies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on Nunber of Layers)
Rules,20l7 is not applicable.

xi. The Conrpmy has not granted any loans or advmces in the nature of loms to prolnoters, directors md KMPs, either severally or jointly with my other person.

xii. DuringtheyearnoschetneofanangelnenthasbeenfonnulatedbytheCourpany/pendingwithcolnpetentauthority.

xiii. Title deeds of irmnovable properties are held in the narne of Cornpany.

xiv. The Cornpany has not revalued its property, plmt and equipment during the year.

xv. The Cornpany llas not revalued it investlnent property during the year.

*ui. There is no atnount bonowed from Banks,/Finmcial Institution which have been used for the specific purpose it was taken.

27 Audit Trail:

such changes rvere t;ra<le anrl ensuring that the ardit trail cannot be disabled.
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limit€d
Registered offic€: omce No, 501, 5th floor, Harshil corporate, Amanskr, G. E. Rmd, Raipur, chhattisgarb' India-492001

Company ldentilication Numb€r | 1J27209CT2020PTC010822

Not€s to the Ind AS Financial Statem€nts for year €nded March 31, 2025

(All amoutrts in Indian Rupees millions, unless mention€d otheruise)

28 First tim€ Adoption of lnd AS

These re the Compmy's fmt fmmcial statemmts prepded in accordmce with lnd AS'

The accouting polici€s set out in Note 2 have been applied in prepring the fnmcial statements for the year ended Mrch 31, 2025, the cornpmtive infonnation presented in

these fnmcial stat€nents for the yeu ended Much 31,2024 md in the prepaation of m opening IND AS Balmce Sheet at April0l,2023 (the Compmy's date of amsilion)'

In prepring its opening Ind AS Balmce Sheet, the compmy has adjustecl the amouts reported previously in lnmcial stalements prepred in accordmce with the comting

stmduds notified mder Compilies (Accouting Standilds) Rules, 2006 (as amended) mJ other relevmt provisions of the Act ("previous GAAP") An explmation of how the

trmsition from previous GAAp to lnd AS has affectecl the Cornpmy's fnmcial posilion, lnmcial perfommce md cash flows is set out in the following tables md notes'

(a) Estimates
The estimates at April 01, 2023 md March 31,2024 are consistent with those made for the sarne dales in accordmce with Indian GAAP (after adiushnents to reflect any

these arnounts in accordance with lnd AS reflect conditions as at the transition date and as ofMarch 3 1, 2024

A. Exemptions and exc€ptions avail€d

ln preprilg these Ind AS fmilcial statements, the cornpany has availed certain optional exemptions and nildatory exceptions in accordmce with lnd AS l0l frorn previous

GAAp to Ind AS, as explained below. The resulting clifference between the carrying values of the assets md liabilities in the finmcial statements as at the trmsition date under

Ind AS md previous GAAp have been recognised directly in equity (retained eamings or mother appropriate cat€gory of equity). This note explains the adjusfinents made by

the Cornpmy in restating its previous GAAP fnancial statements as at April 01, 2023 and the finmcial statetnents as at and for the year ended Mtch 3l ' 2024

A.1 Ind AS optional exemptiotrs

(a) Deemed cost for property plant and equipment, intangible assets

date of tansition to Ind AS, rneasured as per the previous GAAp md use that as its deeined cost as at the date of trilsition after lnaking nec€ssary adjustlnents for de-

cornnissioning liabilities. This exernption cm also be used for intangible assets coYered by Ind AS 38 'htangible Assets''

A.2 lnd AS mandatory exceptions

The following rnandatory exceptions have been applied in accordance with hd AS 101 in preparing the finmcial staternents

(b) Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

recogrition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospect ively iionl the date of transition lo Lrd AS '

(c) Classification and measurement of financial asset

fair value offinacial instrument shall be new gross carrying anourt of finmcial assets or the new alnollised cost of financial liability'

The Company has classified the linancial assets in accordance with Incl AS I 09 on the basis of facts and circulnstatrces that exist at the date of bmsition to Ind AS'
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Sambhv Tubes Private Limited
Reqistered Oflice; Ofiice No. 501. 5th llmr. Harshit Corporate. Amnaka, G. E. Road. Raipur, Chhattissarh. ltrdia-492001
ComDatry Identification Number : U27209CT2020PTC010E22
Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statemnts for year ended March 31. 2025
(All amunts in Indian Rupees millions, unless rentioned otheryise)

28.1 Reconciliation Notes

A, Exemptions and exceptioN availed

Particulars Notes

As at March 31, 2024 As at April 0l, 2023

IGAAP Adjustrcnts lnd AS IGAAP AdiNtments Ind AS

ASSETS
A Nnn-cilnent rccetr
(e) Pronefr hlrnt ,& cdninmenf AI R l5 /5 i1) 2.R4 461 (1.45]. l.l8
lh\ InvcchnFnt Pr nctu t135 tl 15 l3 15 ti35
Total non-current assets (A) t! <o T< ?'I t610 t7gR a1 45t td 51

R- Crrrrenf asrefs
f2) Finrncial 2ssers

/i) Ceqh.& cr(h en'rivalenlq 0il 0_11 0.t 5

/ii\ Ofhcr ffnrn.irl ecccr< I 15 li5 061
(b) Other curent assets AI o r1 /o o1) o22 0tR a0 0i)
Total curent assets (B) r.69 {0.01) t6t 104 /o 01) 101

Tofel Assefs {A+B) 23-19 (5.32) 't7-87 IO nt a1 dt)

EOIJITY & T,IARII,ITIES
A Fd"itu
rr\ Fd'rifw chzre.,hii,l o to 0 t0 010
ft) Other eouitv 1 1) /5 1r) a)( /o 16) 11 48) (1 64\
Totrl ednifv aA) 1.22 /5 1r\ /1 lo) ro 06) /1 dfl) rl 5d)

Lirhilities
R Non-crrreni LiAhilities
ral Fin:ncial liahilities

? I ',t1 t8 ?g

/h\ Dcfeneri rqr li,hiliiiF< /ncr\
Total non-current liabilities lB) 2r.33 tl 11 lt ?q t8 7S

C clrneni liahr'lities
(e) Financial liahilitieq

(a) Total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprises
.nd cnrall Fnrcmr;cFc

(b) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other
than micro rnd <rnrll entemrises

0.06 0.06 0.12

/iil Other financial liabilities
th) Other cilnenf liehilitiec 0lg 0^t9 0.17
rc\ C"reni tax liabilities /net') 0iq 0_39

T^fr1 r,,rent lirhilifie( ral fi64 o64 0.29 [t.29
T^tal li,hilitiP< /R+a) 7l 91 7t 91 tg 08
'l otal Equiry & Liabilities (A+B+c) 23.19 (s.32) t7.87 19,02 (3.48)

0.12

15.54
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Sambhv Tubes Prlvate Limited
Reglslored Omce! Ollice No. 5Ol, 5th n@r, Hafihit Corponte, Amanaka, G. E. Road, Raipur, Chhailisgarh, lndia-49200t
Company Identification Number : U27209CT2020PTC010822

Notes to the lnd AS FiuaDcial Statem€ots for year ended March 31, 2025
(All amouts in ltrdian Rupees millions, unless mentiotred othenise)

24.2 on slalemetrl

28.3 Eff€ct oflnd AS Adoptlon on the Statement ofCash Flow lor the linancial year ended March 31,2024:

28,,1 Reconciliation of Othcr Equily as at Itlarch 31, 2024, and April 01, 2023

''+ Equity as per Indian (iAAl) includes securities Irenlililn and resen,es and surplus.
t I he lndian CAAP figures hale been rccltrsilled to confomr 10 lnd AS prcsenlation requirernenls lbr thc purpose ol this note.

Notes to reconciliation oflndian GAAP to lnd AS

A.l Prior pcrlod adjustments

Compey has dorecognised the 6sets in the Prcfit md loss statement on adoption oflnd AS.

a
a
*
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Particulan Noles

For th€ vear ended M.rch 31.2024

Previous GAAP IND AS Adjustmetras

P.ior period
adjustmeDts IND AS

I. ltrcome
(a) Revenue lim opmtioro
th) Othoincome 220

t.2n ,)i
II. Erpenses

(a) Finece ccts
(b) Oth6 exDeNs

A.l
A]

0.06 1.86
/0 0l)

t.92

lta 2.\7
IlI. Prolit before lax (l-ll)
IV, Tax expense :

(a) Curent tax
(b) Defmed k

l.6lt

0.39

fl.Es) (0.r7)

0.39

Totrl trr .rnen.e alvl n10
V, Protit forth€ year (lll - IV)
Vl. Other comnrehensiv€ income

1.29 (l.Es) (0.s61

Orher cnmnr.hpn.ivF ir.nm. f^r thalaa' lnet ^ftqvl rVl\
VIl, Total comDrehensive income for lhe nerlo.l/verr aV + vI) rto 11 15)

Particulars For the year €nded March31,2024
Indian

GAAP*
Difference due to change h
lnd AS and Prior period

Adjustments

As per Ind AS

Net c6h generated liom operating activities (A)

Net csh (used in) / fiom investing activities (B)

Net cdh (used in)/ from finmcing activitis (C)

0.48 0.48

(1.66) (l.66)

0.68 0.68

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (AtBrC)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equiYalents at the €nd ofthe l'ear

(0.s0)

0.6t

0.lt

(0.s0j

0.6t

0.11

Particulars Notes As al March 31,2024 As at April 01, 202:

Iotal equity as per lndian GAAP**
IND AS Adjustments:

Prior period adjuslnronts:

Derecognition of assets

Total Prior period adjuslileills
Total adjustnletrts

1,12

(5.32)

(5.32)

(0.16)

(l.48 )

(3.48)

Tolal equit! uuder Ind AS 14.20) {J.64 )

As per Balance Shcct 14-20) (3.64)



Sambhv Ttrbrs Hvate Llmlted
Reglster€d Omcer Omce No. g)l' sth n@r, H|nhlt Corponae, Am.nrka, G, E, Ro.d, Rrlpur, ChhNatlsgarh, Indla-492001
Company ldenific8tlon Nmber : U272(DCT2020PIC010822
Notes io lhe lnd AS FinatrctNl Slalemerts for year ended Msrcb 31. 2025
/an amotrnis ld ltrdian

29 Sisnificsrt slfun.l6, judgements rtrd rssumptlos
The prepmtion of the Compmy's finmcial staimmb requirG mamgm$t to make 6timat6 md csumptioro that affst the rcported mounts of revenue, expqF6, 6sets ild liabilitiG,
acmpmying disclcrc, md the disclcure of @ntingmt liabilitiB. Uncertainty about th6e ssumptiom md 6timat6 @uld r6ult itr out@m6 that require a matqial adjsmst to the ceying
mount of 6sets or liabilitiB afided in future psiods.

Estlnrtes rtrd assmptioN

6sets md liabiliti6 within the next fimcid yw, de d66ibed below. The Cmpuy b6ed its 6sumpdotr ad 6timat6 on pmet6 available when the seprate finmcial statmenb wqe pEpded.
Existing cimmsme ild dsumptios about future ddelopments, howsq, may chilge due to mdket chmg6 6 circumstanG dising that ile beyond the @ntrol of tlrc Compoy. Such chdg6 de
reflsted in the dsumptiom whm they mur.

Cotrtltrgetrt llabllltles

ofstimats regarding the outcome offuturc events.

Tares
Thse de mmy hmactiom md qlculatioro undertaken during the ordinary couree of businss for which the ultimate tu detemination is uncertain. Whqe the fral B outcome of thse matt6 is

involvs etimation of a numbq of factoN including ftture tdable in@me.

Impalrment of tron-ritrancial ass€ts

The Compmy asese at each repoding date whethtr thqe is m indiation lhat o 6set may be impated. If iy indi€tion exists, or when mnual impaiment tating for an sset is r.equired, the

trasactiom @ be identified, m appropriate valuation model is used. Thse calculatiom ae conoborated by valuation multiples or other available fail value indicatos.

As Dq our reDort ofeven date

For S S Kotharl Mehta & Co. LLP
Chafrered AcmunhLs

Petner
Memberehip Number: 092671

Placc: New Delhi
Date: July 14.2025

For and on behalfofBo|rd ofDhectors of
Sambhv Tut es Private Limiaed

Resistration No. : 000756N,N50044 I
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'EEu,r Suresh Vikas Kumar GoJal

Director
DIN - 00.318182

Place: Raipur
Date: July 14,2025

Director
DIN - 00318141
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Place: Raipur
Date: July 14,2025
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